GLUCOBAY®

(GLUE·co·bay)

acarbose

Consumer Medicine Information

WHAT IS IN THIS LEAFLET

This leaflet answers some common questions about Glucobay. It does not contain all the available information. It does not take the place of talking to your doctor or pharmacist.

All medicines have risks and benefits. Your doctor has weighed the risks of you taking Glucobay against the benefits they expect it will have for you.

As Glucobay is a prescription medicine, it should only be used under medical supervision.

If you have any concerns about taking this medicine, ask your doctor or pharmacist.

Keep this leaflet with the medicine.

You may need to read it again.

WHAT GLUCOBAY IS USED FOR

Glucobay tablets contain the active drug acarbose. They are used for the treatment of diabetes.

Glucobay helps to control your blood sugar levels in conjunction with diet, exercise, weight loss and other measures by slowing down the digestion of carbohydrates (complex sugars) from your diet. This reduces the abnormally high blood sugar levels that occur after each meal.

Ask your doctor if you have any questions about why this

medicine has been prescribed for vou.

Your doctor may have prescribed it for another reason.

BEFORE YOU TAKE GLUCOBAY

When you must not take it

Do not take Glucobay if you have an allergy to:

- acarbose, the active ingredient in Glucobay
- any of the ingredients listed at the end of this leaflet.

Some of the symptoms of an allergic reaction may include:

- shortness of breath
- · wheezing or difficulty breathing
- swelling of the face, lips, tongue or other parts of the body
- rash, itching or hives on the skin.

Do not take Glucobay if:

- you have a severe kidney disorder (creatinine clearance < 25 mL/min).
- you suffer from intestinal obstruction, inflammation or ulceration of the bowel, e.g. ulcerative colitis or Crohn's disease
- you have a hernia or have had previous abdominal surgery. If so, consult your doctor first.

Do not give this medicine to a child under the age of 18 years.

Do not take this medicine after the expiry date printed on the pack and blister.

The expiry date is printed on the carton and on each blister after "EXP" (e.g. 11 18 refers to November 2018). The expiry date refers to the last day of that month. If it has expired return it to your pharmacist for disposal.

Do not take this medicine if the packaging is torn or shows signs of tampering.

If the packaging is damaged, return it to your pharmacist for disposal.

If you are not sure whether you should start taking this medicine, talk to your doctor.

Before you start to take it

Tell your doctor if you have allergies to any other medicines, foods, preservatives or dyes.

Tell your doctor if you are pregnant or intend to become pregnant.

Like most medicines of this kind, Glucobay is not recommended to be used during pregnancy. Your doctor will discuss the risks and benefits of using it if you are pregnant.

Tell your doctor if you are breastfeeding or planning to breastfeed.

It is not known whether Glucobay passes into breast milk.

If you have not told your doctor about any of the above, tell him/her before you start taking Glucobay.

Taking other medicines

Tell your doctor or pharmacist if you are taking other medicines,

including any you have bought without a prescription from your pharmacy, supermarket or health food shop.

Some medicines and Glucobay may interfere with each other. These include:

- · Neomycin
- · Cholestyramine
- Intestinal adsorbents (e.g. charcoal)
- Digestive enzyme preparations
- Digoxin

These medicines may be affected by Glucobay or may affect how well it works. You may need different amounts of your medicines, or you may need to take different medicines.

Your doctor and pharmacist have more information on medicines to be careful with or avoid while taking this medicine.

You should avoid taking cane sugar (sucrose) and products containing sugar. They may cause stomach discomfort or even diarrhoea if taken while you are on Glucobay tablets.

If you are taking other medicines containing sulfonylureas or metformin or tend to have low blood sugar levels, tell your doctor before using Glucobay.

If you have not told your doctor or pharmacist about any of the above, tell them before you start taking Glucobay.

HOW TO TAKE GLUCOBAY

Follow all directions given to you by your doctor or pharmacist carefully.

They may differ from the information contained in this leaflet.

If you do not understand the instructions printed on the pharmacist label, ask your doctor or pharmacist for help.

How much to take

To gain the maximum benefit from Glucobay it is important that you follow the prescribed diet as well as taking the exact dose prescribed by your doctor. This will help control your blood sugar levels and reduce side effects experienced.

At the start of treatment, your doctor may prescribe a low dose of Glucobay. Your doctor will determine the correct dose for you depending on your condition, other medicines and your response to the treatment. The average adult dose is one Glucobay 100 mg tablet taken three times daily.

How to take it

Swallow the tablets whole with a little liquid immediately before the meal. If you prefer not to swallow the tablets then chew the tablets with the first few mouthfuls of food.

When to take it

Take your medicine at about the same time each day with breakfast, lunch and dinner.

Taking it at the same time each day will have the best effect. It will also help you remember when to take it.

When you first start your treatment, your doctor may recommend that you take your tablets once or twice a day, before increasing your dose to three times a day.

How long to take it

Do not stop taking the tablets unless you are told to do so by your doctor.

This medicine helps to control your condition, but does not cure it. It is important to keep taking your medicine even if you feel well.

If you do not feel well while you are taking them, see your doctor. (see **SIDE EFFECTS**).

If you forget to take it

If you forget to take Glucobay at the time you are supposed to, do not

take the tablets between meals. Wait until it is time for you to take your next dose and take Glucobay with your meal and continue as before. Do not take a double dose.

If you take too much (Overdose)

If you have taken too many Glucobay tablets, avoid foods or drinks containing carbohydrates and telephone your doctor or the Poisons Information Centre (Australia: 13 11 26 or New Zealand: 0800 POISON or 0800 764 766) for advice, or go to Accident and Emergency at the nearest hospital, if you think that you or anyone else may have taken too much Glucobay. Do this even if there are no signs of discomfort or poisoning.

You may need urgent medical attention.

When Glucobay is taken with drinks and/or meals containing carbohydrates, overdosage can lead to diarrhoea and other intestinal symptoms such as flatulence (wind) and abdominal cramps.

WHILE YOU ARE TAKING GLUCOBAY

Things you must do

If you are about to be started on any new medicine, remind your doctor and pharmacist that you are taking Glucobay.

Tell any other doctors, dentists, and pharmacists who treat you that you are taking this medicine.

Take Glucobay exactly as instructed by your doctor. If you do not follow your doctor's instructions, your blood sugar level may not be controlled.

Things you must not do

Do not take Glucobay to treat any other complaints unless your doctor tells you to. Do not give your medicine to anyone else, even if they have the same condition as you.

Do not stop taking your medicine or lower the dosage without checking with your doctor.

If you stop taking it suddenly, your condition may worsen or you may have unwanted side effects.

What to be careful of

Treating hypoglycaemia: ("hypos" or low blood sugar):

As a diabetic you may also be receiving other medicines for your diabetes. If Glucobay is prescribed for you in addition to sulfonylureas, metformin or insulin to control your diabetes, your doctor may need to adjust the dosages of these drugs to avoid the occurrence of "hypos" (low blood sugar levels).

When taking Glucobay together with these drugs, do not treat a "hypo" with ordinary sugar (sucrose). It will not work fast enough. Instead, you should take some GLUCOSE (also known as dextrose) tablets, honey, syrup or sweets which should be available from your local chemist.

SIDE EFFECTS

Tell your doctor or pharmacist as soon as possible if you do not feel well while you are taking Glucobay.

All medicines have side effects. Sometimes they are serious; most of the time they are not. In serious cases, you may need to obtain medical treatment.

Some patients may experience unwanted side effects during Glucobay treatment. These side effects are more common at the start of the treatment, but some may persist or develop after treatment, or when dosage of Glucobay is adjusted by your doctor.

Do not be alarmed by the following lists of side effects. You may not experience any of them.

Ask your doctor or pharmacist to answer any questions you may have.

Tell your doctor or pharmacist if you notice any of the following and they worry you:

- flatulence (wind)
- abdominal "rumbling" noises
- a feeling of fullness
- softer stools or have diarrhea; particularly if you have eaten foods containing sugar

The above list includes the more common side effects of your medicine. Normally these symptoms will disappear if you continue treatment and keep to your prescribed diet. These symptoms may get worse if you do not keep to your prescribed diet.

If your symptoms persist for more than 2 or 3 days, or if they are severe, consult your doctor or nearest emergency department particularly in the case of diarrhoea.

Do not take antacids to treat these symptoms as they are unlikely to give you any relief.

This list includes the less common side effects of your medicine.

- · stomach cramps
- nausea
- · indigestion
- · vomiting
- increased appetite
- · dizziness
- · loss of appetite

Tell your doctor as soon as possible if you notice any of the following. This list includes rare side effects of your medicine.

- jaundice (yellowing of the skin)
- · swelling from fluid retention
- inflammation of the liver (hepatitis)
- · intestinal obstruction
- · decrease in platelet count
- skin reactions such as redness, rash and urticaria (hives)

If while undergoing treatment with Glucobay, you experience any side-effects or symptoms which you think may be due to this medication (whether or not it is mentioned in this leaflet) please inform your doctor or pharmacist as early as possible. You may need medical treatment in some cases.

Glucobay tablets may cause an increase in the results of certain liver function tests. Therefore, your doctor may conduct blood tests to monitor your liver function during the first 6 to 12 months of treatment with Glucobay.

These effects go away when treatment is stopped.

Tell your doctor or pharmacist if you notice anything that is making you feel unwell.

Other side effects not listed above may also occur in some people.

AFTER TAKING GLUCOBAY

When treatment with Glucobay is to be stopped, your prescribing doctor may need to alter the dose of other medication(s) accordingly and monitor your condition.

Storage

Keep your tablets in the pack until it is time to take them.

If you take the tablets out of the pack they may not keep well.

Keep your tablets in a cool dry place where the temperature stays below 30°C.

Do not store it or any other medicine in the bathroom, near a sink, or on a window-sill.

Do not leave it in the car.

Heat and damp can destroy some medicines.

Keep it where children cannot reach it.

A locked cupboard at least one-anda-half metres above the ground is a good place to store medicines.

Disposal

If your doctor tells you to stop taking this medicine or the expiry date has passed, ask your pharmacist what to do with any medicine that is left over.

Return any unused medicine to your pharmacist.

PRODUCT DESCRIPTION

What it looks like

Glucobay tablets are available in a blister pack of 30, 90 or 120 tablets in two strengths. Not all pack sizes may be marketed.

Glucobay 50 tablets are white to yellow-tinged, round biconvex and unscored, with the Bayer cross marked on one side and "G" and "50" on the reverse.

Glucobay 100 tablets are white to yellow-tinged, round, convex marked with "G" and "100".

Ingredients

Active Ingredient per tablet:

- Glucobay 50 acarbose 50 mg
- Glucobay 100 acarbose 100mg

Inactive ingredients:

- · microcrystalline cellulose
- maize starch
- · colloidal anhydrous silica
- · magnesium stearate.

Supplier

Made in Germany for:

Bayer Australia Ltd ABN 22 000 138 714 875 Pacific Highway Pymble NSW 2073

Bayer New Zealand Limited 3 Argus Place, Hillcrest, North Shore Auckland 0627

Australian Registration Numbers

Glucobay 50 mg - AUST R 43194 Glucobay 100 mg - AUST R 43195

Date of preparation

July 2018

See TGA website (www.ebs.tga.gov.au) for latest Australian Consumer Medicine Information.

See MEDSAFE website (www.medsafe.govt.nz) for latest New Zealand Consumer Medicine Information.

- ® Registered Trademark of Bayer AG, Germany
- © Bayer Australia Ltd

All rights reserved

